
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

WWaasshhiinnggttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  
BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  

MMeeeettiinngg  
OOccttoobbeerr  44,,  22002211  

  



October 1, 2021  1:08:14 PM 

 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2021 

COMMISSIONERS’ CONFERENCE ROOM & LIVESTREAM 
 ON FACEBOOK VIA ZOOM 

116 ADAMS STREET, PLYMOUTH, NC 
 
 
 6:00 PM Call to Order—Vice-Chair Tracey A. Johnson 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   

  Additions / Deletions 
 

Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 
Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature. The Board may take action 
to approve/disapprove all items in a single vote. Any item may be withheld from a general 
action, to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 
a) Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes for September 7, 2021 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
c) Soil & Water MOU 
d) FY2023 Community Transportation Program (CTP) Grant Submission Resolution 
e) Proclamation 2021-017:  National Breast Cancer Awareness Month 
f) Proclamation 2021-018:  Domestic Violence Awareness Month 

 
Item 2 6:10 PM  Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
 
Item 3 6:20 PM Department Information Update: Plymouth Municipal Airport, Mr. Knapp Brabble, PMA 

Director 
 
Item 4 6:40 PM Resolution 2021-019 Adopting Redistricting Map, Mr. Richard Livingston, LFNC 

Management Fellow and Mr. Harry White, GIS/Mapping Director 
  
Item 5 6:50 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy Dixon, 

Finance Officer 
 

Item 6 7:00 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 
 

Item 7 7:10 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  (attorney-client 
privilege), NCGS§143-318.11(a)(4)  (economic development) and NCGS §143-
318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 

  
 

RECESS to Monday, October 11, 2021 @ Washington County High School Gym @ 6:00 PM  
For Joint Meeting with the Board of Education 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  1    
 
       DATE:  October 4, 2021 
 
ITEM:   Consent Agenda      
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
a) Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes for September 7, 2021 

See attached. 
 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 

See attached. 
 

c) Soil & Water MOU 
See attached. 
 

d) FY2023 Community Transportation Program (CTP) Grant Submission Resolution 
The CTP information was presented to you at the September 7, 2021 meeting; however, the 
resolution was not put before the Board at that meeting so it is being presented here for 
approval at the October 4, 2021 meeting. 
 

e) Proclamation 2021-017:  National Breast Cancer Awareness Month 
See attached. 
 

f) Proclamation 2021-018:  Domestic Violence Awareness Month 
See attached. 
 
 

 



DRAFT 

                       
 
 

September 7, 2021 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
September 7, 2021 at 6:00 PM by using ZOOM—virtual meeting software (due to the COVID-
19 pandemic) for Facebook Live Streaming in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, 
Plymouth, NC. Commissioners Tracey Johnson, Ann Keyes, Carol Phelps and Julius Walker, Jr. 
were present.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the 
Board Julie J. Bennett and Finance Officer Missy Dixon.  Commissioner Sexton was unable to 
attend. 
 

 Vice-Chair Johnson called the meeting to order. Commissioner Keyes gave the 
invocation; County Manager/Attorney Potter led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  Ms. Bennett, Clerk to the Board, asked to delete Item 4: 
Employee of the Quarter. There were no nominations.  Mr. Potter, County Manager/County 
Attorney asked to remove NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) from Closed Session Item 12.  
 
 CONSENT AGENDA:  Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda with the above noted change: 
 

Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, 
to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 
a) Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes for August 2, 2021 
b) Approval of Closed Session Meeting Minutes for: 

August 6, 2020, September 8, 2020, October 5, 2020, November 2, 2020, December 7, 
2020, February 1, 2021, March 1, 2021, April 5, 2021, May 17, 2021, May 24, 2021, 
June 7, 2021, June 14, 2021 and July 6, 2021 

c) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
d) Fee Schedule:  EMS 
e) Post-Employment Retirement Policy—Sections 1-10 of Article V 
f) VUR Grant Resolution 
g) Resolution 2021-005 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 111 East Main Street, 

 Plymouth, by Electronic Public Auction Pursuant to GS 160-A-270 
h) Ratification of Resolution 2021-013 Opposing Reduction in the Number of Judges in         

the Second Judicial District 
i) SAA Delegates for October Meeting 
j) Resolution:  Remembering 9/11 
k) Surplus Property Disposition to Roanoke Development Center (RDC) 
l) Amendment to Plymouth’s CFR Funds 
m) “Application for Property Tax Relief” 2021 Late Application  

    
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Vice-Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  

Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously.  
   



DRAFT 

 PUBLIC FORUM:  None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING:  PROPOSED FY2023 COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION 
PROGRAM (CTP) APPLICATION:  Commissioner Keyes made a motion to open the public 
hearing on the Proposed FY2023 Community Transportation Program (CTP) Application.  
Commissioner Walker seconded.  Vice-Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  
Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 Ms. Lynn Swett spoke about the documents in the Commissioners’ agenda package (and shown 
below).   
 

 
 

Commissioner Walker made a motion to close the public hearing on the Proposed 
FY2023 Community Transportation Program (CTP) Application.  Commissioner Phelps 
seconded.  Vice-Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Walker, yea; 



DRAFT 

Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Johnson, yea.  
Motion carried unanimously.  
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the submission of the Proposed 
FY2023 Community Transportation Program (CTP) Application.  Commissioner Phelps 
seconded.  Vice-Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Walker, yea; 
Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Johnson, yea.  
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 DEPARTMENT INFORMATION UPDATE:  EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT:  Mr. Lance 
Swindell, Emergency Management Coordinator gave the following presentation.  
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 Mr. Swindell said the County needs to take time to thank the County’s fire departments.  They 
are wonderful folks. They are all volunteers. They are getting weary because we have had so many fires 
in the last 2 months.  They need new volunteers.  As a volunteer, you wouldn’t necessarily have to run 
into a fire, you could be a scribe or some other administrative function. They have to have 36 hours of 
certification/re-certification each year. 
 
 Commissioner Walker said Mr. Swindell answered all the questions he had during his 
presentation, mainly about working with surrounding counties. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes thanked Mr. Swindell for the job he is doing.  She always has been and 
still is an advocate of the volunteer firefighters and the CERT team.  They do a wonderful job and they 
don’t get paid for it. 
 
 TOBACCO/VAPING PRESENTATION:  Ms. Miranda Keel, Tobacco Health Educator, 
MTW Health Department gave the following presentation.  
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 

 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 

 
 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 



DRAFT 

 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 NEW WASHINGTON COUNTY LOGO:  Mr. Tom Harrison, Travel & Tourism Director 
gave the following presentation. 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 Mr. Harrison said he held a Travel & Tourism Authority (TTA) meeting today.  Mr. Harrison 
also passed out new brochures.  He said he talked to some visitors coming from the Outer Banks who 
said the Comfort Inn is over $400/night and the Sanderling in Duck is over $1,000/night.  Washington 
County’s occupancy tax collections in July were doubled since folks are coming to stay in Plymouth. 
 
 Mr. Harrison said there is going to be a meeting at Riverview Café next Tuesday to discuss 
ideas for things to do in Plymouth 
 
 Mr. Harrison also mentioned that this year was the biggest crowd we ever had for the Rumble 
on the Roanoke in August. He may hold it in September next year. 



DRAFT 

 Mr. Harrison said he is working on a Christmas laser light show to be shown at the Plymouth 
Airport on December 17, 18, & 19.  He noted that the Town of Wilson did this last year and this year 
they have booked the group (who puts this on) for an entire week.  
 
 Mr. Harrison noted that he was directed by the Commissioners to meet with all three towns and 
he did and the meetings went well.  The version that  
 
 

     
 
 It was discussed that the County can use different variations in publishing such as letterheads 
and business cards.  
 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion adopt  the abovementioned logo as the new 
Washington County Logo.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Vice-Chair Johnson proceeded 
with the roll call:  Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner 
Keyes, yea; Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 
Commissioner Keyes said they took that bear all the way to Wilmington to the NCACC 

Annual Conference. 
 
Ms. Bennett said she would see about getting t-shirts made for the Commissioners with 

the new logo on it. 
 
2020 CENSUS DATE & REDISTRICTING:  Mr. Harry White, GIS/Mapping Director 

and Mr. Richard Livingston, Lead for North Carolina Fellow (LFNC) gave the following 
presentation. 

 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 
Mr. Livingston said he wants to post maps on the County’s Facebook page as a way to 

put them out to the public.  He would like to present a resolution at the next Commissioners’ 
meeting for approval on the redistricting to be able to have maps changed to meet the deadline 
(October 8) before the next Commissioners’ elections. 

 
Vice-Chair Johnson said it looks like District 1 didn’t change.  Commissioner Keyes says 

it looks like District 4 is the largest district.  Mr. Livingston said it is and it is way out of 
proportion.  He and Mr. White tried to even it out. Mr. White asked if it made sense what they 
did.  Commissioner Keyes said she needs time to look at it.  Mr. Potter said there is a narrow 



DRAFT 

window for making these changes. He asked the Commissioners to please call or drop by to see 
Mr. White or Mr. Richardson with their questions and concerns as soon as they can. 

 
Commissioner Phelps asked for the  maps in color.  Vice-Chair Johnson asked for the 

maps to have road names on them for the new districting. 
 
Mr. White asked the Commissioners if they would all like their own district with the road 

names and they said yes. 
 
Commissioner Phelps thanked them for doing a great job on this.  Mr. White said he 

couldn’t have done it without Mr. Livingston.  Vice-Chair Johnson thanked them both. 
 
 BOARDS & COMMITTEES:   
 
Northeastern Workforce Development Board (NWDB) 
 

Commissioner Johnson asked the Commissioners and the Clerk for assistance in 
identifying a new appointee to replace Diane White (Business Representative—Washington 
County) who is resigning from the NWDB. 
 

At the last Commissioners’ meeting, Commissioner Johnson said since NWDB is looking 
for a business person but businesses are suffering and the owners can’t take the time to fill this 
spot, that she was going to take this back to the NWDB and ask for more time to find someone 
rather than losing a spot. 

 
Status is still the same on this. 
          

Trillium Regional Advisory Board 
 
Mr. Dave Peterson, Senior Regional Director for Trillium Health Services, contacted 
Commissioner Johnson to ask the Board to appoint Ms. Kirsten Smith (Health Ed 
Supervisor/Preparedness Coordinator at MTW District Health Department) to fill the slot for 
Washington County on the Trillium Regional Advisory Board left by Ms. Lee Ann Sorto of 
WRMC. 
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to appoint Ms. Kirsten Smith, MTW Health Ed 
Supervisor/Preparedness Coordinator to fill the slot for Washington County on the 
Trillium Regional Advisory Board.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Vice-Chair Johnson 
proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; 
Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package.  

 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 



DRAFT 

 
Ms. Dixon said they will see a couple of more transfers from last fiscal year as things are 

still being closed out. 
 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion approve  the budget transfers/amendments as 
presented. Commissioner Walker seconded.  Vice-Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll 
call:  Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
MANAGER OR CLERK:   
 



DRAFT 

 Ms. Bennett said it was good to have the County Manager back from vacation! 
 
 Commissioner Walker said he wanted to tell the Board how elated he is to have Vice-Chair 
Johnson as the upcoming NCACC President-Elect and also the NCACC Annual Conference was a great 
conference. 
 
 Commissioner Phelps said the trip to the landfill during the NCACC Annual Conference was very 
impressive. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes commended Vice-Chair Johnson on her appointment and said she also 
enjoyed the NCACC Annual Conference.  Commissioner Keyes mentioned that on August 9 she had the 
first meeting of  the Community Development County.  There was a presentation by Mr. Potter on the 
“State of the County” and by Renee Collier regarding the upcoming Citizen’s Academy.  Commissioner 
Keyes said Ms. Rebecca Liverman did a great job facilitating the meeting.  Commissioner Keyes also 
mentioned the opening of the African American Museum in Roper will be on Saturday, September 11, 
2021. 
 
 Vice-Chair Johnson thanked the Commissioners for attending the NCACC Annual Conference and 
supporting her.  It was well attended. NCACC tries to make it educational for the attendees. Vice-Chair 
Johnson said she is so proud to be the President-Elect and looking forward to moving up to President next 
year. 
  
 Mr. Potter said staff is gearing up to bring the Commissioners some ideas of how to spend the 
County’s ARP monies.   
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 
§143-318.11(a)(3)--attorney-client privilege. Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Vice-Chair Johnson 
proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; 
Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

At 8:21 PM, with no further business to discuss, Commissioner Phelps made a motion to 
adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Vice-Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll 
call:  Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
              Tracey A. Johnson                       Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 

      Vice-Chair        Clerk to the Board 
 
 























`              Agreement Number: 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

Between the 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVATION SERVICE 

And the 
NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND 

CONSUMER SERVICES – DIVISION OF SOIL AND WATER  
CONSERVATION 

And the 
WASHINGTON SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

And 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
For their Cooperation In the  

Conservation of Natural Resources 
 

 
BACKGROUND STATEMENT AND PURPOSE 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is between the Natural Resource Conservation Service (NRCS), an agency 
of the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), the North Carolina Department of 
Agriculture and Consumer Services – Division of Soil and Water Conservation (DSWC) an 
agency of the State of North Carolina, the Washington Soil and Water Conservation District 
(SWCD), and Washington County collectively referred to as the parties, to clearly define the roles 
and responsibilities of the parties. 
 
The purpose of this agreement is to supplement the Cooperative Working Agreement between the 
USDA – Natural Resources Conservation Service, North Carolina Department of Agriculture and 
Consumer Services, North Carolina Soil and Water Conservation Commission, and Washington 
Soil and Water Conservation District. This operational agreement documents those areas of 
common interest of the federal, state, and local partnership in natural resources conservation. 
 
The parties mutually agree to provide leadership in natural resources conservation. The parties 
pledge to work together by advancing and practicing teamwork, including input in the decision 
making process; communicating, coordinating, and cooperating; promoting mutual respect, and 
sharing leadership, ownership, credit, and responsibility. 
 
AUTHORITIES, STATUTES, LAWS 
 
NRCS is authorized to cooperate and furnish assistance to the parties in the conservation of 
natural resources as referenced in the Soil Conservation and Domestic Allotment Act, 16 U.S.C. 
590; The Department of Agriculture Reorganization Act of 1994, Public Law 103-354; and 
Secretary’s Memorandum No. 1010-1, Reorganization of the Department of Agriculture, dated 
October 20, 1994. 
 
 
 



`              Agreement Number: 

DSWC is authorized to enter into this agreement by the North Carolina General Statutes §139-4 
and §143B-294 - §143B-297. 
 
The District authority is defined in Soil Conservation Districts Law, General Statutes of North 
Carolina §139-1 - §139-47. 
 
The County is authorized to enter into this agreement by North Carolina General Statute §153A-
11 and §160A-461 - §160A-464. 
 
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITES: 
 
CONSERVATION PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION 
 
The parties recognize the natural resources conservation program as a unique blend of voluntary 
conservation initiatives and federal, state, and local mandates.  Together these address a variety of 
natural resource, environmental, and educational issues. The parties agree to jointly commit their 
program authorities and financial and human resources to cooperatively implement a unified 
natural resource conservation program in areas of mutual concern. The implementation of all 
programs will be done in accordance with program policy and procedures developed for that 
specific program – whether federal, state, or local.  
 
Inventories and Data Sharing: The parties agree to identify, define, and coordinate the collection 
and use of natural resource and other data needed to support the delivery of federal, state, and 
local conservation program benefits. The parties will cooperate in maintaining data to assure that 
it supports the mutual needs of the parties for resource planning and evaluation. The parties 
further agree that gathered data will be mutually shared and used in support of conservation 
program implementation as needed to facilitate implementation of the programs shown in 
Attachment A. The use and disclosure of information will be consistent with the guidelines 
provided in the Records, Facilities, and Equipment section of this agreement.  Both NRCS and 
SWCD employees in the office will maintain adequate knowledge of available conservation 
programs in order to provide basic customer service including, but not limited to: 

1. Providing basic information about program requirements and signup periods 
2. Helping a customer complete a program application 
3. Interviewing the customer to determine resource concerns and conservation issues 
4. Gathering of farm data to support development of a conservation plan 
5. Developing of a conservation plan 

 
Setting Program Priorities: The parties agree to implement the conservation program based on 
mutually developed priorities while recognizing individual responsibilities for federal, state, or 
local mandates. The parties further to agree to annually re-evaluate established priorities and 
adjust as warranted. SWCD Board has the responsibility to organize local work groups to assess 
resource conditions and establish local priorities, and develop a single SWCD/NRCS partnership 
plan of work each fiscal year (July 01 – June 30). Specifically, NRCS employees will first address 
workload associated with Federal conservation programs, NRCS priorities, and required NRCS 
administrative procedures. As time is available, NRCS employees will assist with the North 
Carolina Agriculture Cost Share Program (NCACSP) and other District priorities. Likewise, 
District staff will first address workload associated with the NCACSP, District priorities, and 
required District administrative procedures. As time is available, District staff will assist with 
federal conservation programs and other NRCS priorities. 



`              Agreement Number: 

Programs to be Implemented: The parties agree to use federal, state, and local programs in a 
complimentary fashion to address local priorities and concerns. Attachment A includes a list of 
programs that will be utilized to address priorities and concerns. Employees from agencies will 
work across program lines to assure efficient and effective customer service. 
 
Marketing: The parties agree to conduct a common effort to inform public of program 
opportunities and benefits. This information will be disseminated to the appropriate media, to 
promote district activities and programs. See Attachment A for a marketing profile and a summary 
of media outlets. 
 
TECHNICAL STANDARDS AND JOB APPROVAL AUTHORITY 
 
The parties agree to utilize the NRCS Field Office Technical or Soil and Water Conservation 
Commission adopted standards as the minimum technical standards for conservation program 
implementation in areas of mutual concern. The parties may utilize more stringent standards when 
necessary to comply with locally enacted laws or ordinances. The NRCS will be the lead agency 
in the development, maintenance, and interpretation of the Field Office Technical Guide. When 
program contracts are developed, the District and NRCS employees in the office will provide 
conservation planning assistance that meets NRCS planning policy. At a minimum, the 
conservation planning will encompass the field or fields impacted by the cost-shared conservation 
practice. 
 
The parties agree that their respective employees will provide technical assistance based on 
assigned conservation practice job approval authority which is based on acquired knowledge, 
skills, and demonstrated ability and within applicable laws, regulations, and guidelines. 
Conservation practice job approval authority will be determined and documented according to 
NRCS National Engineering Manual, Part 501 and in accordance with the NC NRCS policy and 
procedures regarding job approval authority. Job approval authority for District employees for 
non-agricultural practices will be determined and documented by the N.C. Soil and Water 
Conservation Commission pursuant to NCAC 15A 06F.0105(c)(3). Each technical employee in 
the office will acquire the necessary skills to qualify for job approval authority for the routinely 
used engineering and non-engineering conservation practices prevalent in the county. Both 
District and NRCS employees will attend available training sessions to maintain their knowledge, 
skills, and abilities related to conservation planning and practice design, layout, checkout, and 
certification.  
 
PERSONNEL AND FISCAL MANAGEMENT 
 
The parties recognize that natural resources conservation programs are delivered through an 
intergovernmental system, in which federal, state, and local governments work together. 
 
The parties will work together to provide staffing and fiscal resources commensurate with 
workload, priorities, allocated funding, and expertise necessary to deliver a balanced and 
diversified conservation program. Staffing will be a mix of employees provided by federal, state, 
county, and district resources. There are certain authorities delegated to specific staff as follows: 
 
 
 
 



`              Agreement Number: 

Department Head 
 
The parties jointly agree that Martha Prinsloo, Lead District Technician, Washington Soil and 
Water Conservation District, will serve as the Department Head.  The Department Head will 
represent the District and its employees at county meetings, conferences, and appropriate 
functions. 
 
Personnel Management 
 
The management of personnel will be as follows: 
 

a) Hiring and dismissal of district employees will be in accordance with county personnel 
policies or district policy when employees are not employed by the county. 

 
b) The management of NRCS personnel is the responsibility of NRCS. 

 

c) Hiring, supervision, development, evaluation, and dismissal of county employees will be 
done in accordance with applicable law and county personnel policies, and with input and 
guidance from the Washington District Board of Supervisors for county employees 
assigned to the county Soil & Water Department. 
 

d) The primary daily supervision and operational management of county employees assigned 
to the county Soil & Water Department is the responsibility of the Washington District 
Board of Supervisors, with input and guidance from the County Manager. In the interest 
of facilitating these responsibilities, the District Conservationist is delegated the authority 
for: 

 
1) Technical oversight 

a. As a condition of assigning job approval authority for agricultural practices 
to District employees, NRCS must periodically review the technical work 
of these employees to assure adherence to planning and design standards 
and policy. The DC is assigned as the NRCS representative to provide this 
oversight. NRCS Area personnel will also periodically review the technical 
work of both NRCS and District employees in the office. 
 

2) Delivery of employee technical training and development. 
 

e) The Department Head will make recommendations to the Washington District Board of 
Supervisors regarding the following in accordance with county government policy: 

 
1) Recruitment and hiring of district employees. 
2) Employee performance evaluation, including awards, disciplinary actions, and 

separation. 
3) Leave coordination and approval. 
4) Certification of Time and Attendance Reports. 
5) Determination and approval of training requiring expenditure of district funds. 



`              Agreement Number: 

6) For counties with technicians cost shared through the state’s cost share programs, 
responsibility for documenting 2080 hours for each funded position spent per year 
on non-point source pollution control issues by office staff. 

 
In the event that a county employee feels aggrieved, their recourse is according to county 
government personnel policy. The parties agree to work cooperatively to resolve employee 
grievances. 
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Management 
 
The parties will work together to maximize available resources and actively seek funding to 
accomplish natural resource priorities and programs. 
 
Each party is responsible for its own fiscal resources to include equipment, supplies, and 
accounts. 
 
The Department Head and District Administrative Assistant will actively assist the district with 
the following: 
 

1) Development of operating budgets. 
2) Tracking of expenditures for maintaining funding accountability. 
3) Making recommendations regarding expenditure of funds and purchases. 

 
TECHNICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONTACTS 
 

 

NRCS Technical 
Name: Anthony Hester 
Title: Soil Conservation Technician 
Address: 155 Airport Road, Washington, NC 27889 
Phone No. 252-946-4989 Ext 3 
Fax No. 844-325-6821 
E-Mail: anthony.hester@usda.gov 

 
 

NRCS Administrative 
Name: William Gardiner 
Title: Supervisory Soil Conservationist 
Address: 155C Airport Road, Washington, NC 27889 
Phone No. 252-946-4989 ext 3 



`              Agreement Number: 

Fax No. 844-325-6821 
E-Mail: william.gardiner@usda.gov 

 

 

SWCD Technical 
Name: Martha Prinsloo 
Title: District Technician 
Address: 407 Hwy 32 N, Roper, NC 27970 
Phone No. 252-791-0108 ext110    
Fax No. 844-325-6821 
E-Mail: washingtonsoilandwater@gmail.com 

 

 
 
 

SWCD Technical 

Name: Click here to enter text. 

Title: Click here to enter text. 

Address: Click here to enter text. 

Phone No. Click here to enter text. 

Fax No. Click here to enter text. 

E-Mail: Click here to enter text. 
 
 

SWCD Administrative 

Name: Click here to enter text. 

Title: Click here to enter text. 

Address: Click here to enter text. 

Phone No. Click here to enter text. 

Fax No. Click here to enter text. 

E-Mail: Click here to enter text. 
 
RECORDS 



`              Agreement Number: 

 
 
The parties will agree on the maintenance, update, and disposition of relevant records. Access to 
records will be governed by the Section 1619 of the Food, Conservation, and Energy Act of 2008, 
the Federal Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) and/or the North Carolina Public Records Law 
depending on whether the record is a federal record or a state/local record. Each party accepts 
responsibility for any security breach caused by their employee(s). District personnel with access 
to federal records, either electronic or hard copies, will complete the required annual security 
training, conducted through NRCS. 
 
All parties agree to protect personally identifiable and/or confidential information from customers 
and employees by securing this information in locked file cabinets. When the information is being 
used and not in a locked cabinet, the employees will keep it with them personally (folder, memory 
storage device) to avoid improper disclosure of information or loss of data. Personally identifiable 
and/or confidential information will only be used for authorized purposes. 
 
FEE FOR SERVICES 
 
 

Washington From time to time, the  Soil and Water Conservation District may: 
• Sell material (i.e. native species plants) 
• Solicit sponsorship for special events, or community/educational workshops 
• Perform general fundraising 

ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
The parties agree to cooperatively develop and utilize natural resource databases to measure 
effectiveness in program delivery and customer satisfaction. The District will provide a copy of 
its Annual Report by September 1 and Plan of Operations by July 31 to other signatories of this 
agreement. The District will also provide a copy of their Long Range Plan which, at no time, will 
be in excess of five years old. 
 
SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 
 
This agreement covers the basic operating understanding between all parties. Authority to carry 
out specific projects or activities, transfer of funds, or acquisition of services or property, will be 
established under septate agreement. The parties agree that contracts, memorandums of 
understanding, and/or additional agreements may be entered into, as needed, to facilitate the 
implementation of natural resources conservation programs within the conservation districts. 
 
TORT LIABILITY 
 
The parties will each assume responsibility for the actions of their officials or employees acting 
within the scope of their employment to the extent provided by federal and state laws and local 
ordinances. 
 
CIVIL RIGHTS 
 
The parties recognize the benefit and importance of delivering conservation programs equitably to 
all customers, having a diverse staff to assist this customer base, and having diversity within the 



`              Agreement Number: 

district board. The parties agree to work cooperatively to achieve diversity in all aspects of the 
conservation program through effective outreach and marketing. 
 
The parties will be in compliance with the nondiscrimination provisions contained in Titles VI 
and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 
(Public Law 100-259) and other nondiscrimination statutes, namely, Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975, Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, and in accordance with the 
regulations of the USDA Secretary of Agriculture (7CFR-15, Subparts A & B) which provide that 
no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, age, sex, 
religion, marital status, or disability be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, 
or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal 
financial assistance from the Department of Agriculture or any agency thereof.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEW/ MODIFICATION/TERMINATION 
 
This agreement will be reviewed annually and, unless amended, shall be in effect for a period not 
to exceed five (5) years from the date of final signature. The agreement can be modified or 
terminated at any time by mutual consent of all parties or can be terminated by any party giving 
60 days written notice to the other parties. 
 
 
 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF  NCDA&CS – DIVISION OF SOIL AND 
AGRICULTURE      WATER CONSERVATION 
NATURAL RESOURCES          
CONSERVATION SERVICE     
 
 
By:       By: 
 State Conservationist     Director 
 
 
Date:       Date: 
 
 
 
 
 
WASHINGTON SOIL AND WATER   WASHINGTON COUNTY 



`              Agreement Number: 

CONSERVATION DISTRICT  
 
 
 
By: Gerda D Rhodes  By: 
 Chairperson      County Manager 
 
 
Date: 12/28/2020      Date:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment A 

The following is a detailed list of Resource Inventories, Programs, and Marketing Media used to address 
local conservation priorities and concerns. The parties agree to utilize these in a complimentary manner, 
thus maximizing the delivery of conservation benefits to the customers and clients. This list is subject to 
informal changes or updates. 

RESOURCE INVENTORY & DATA SHARING NC Agriculture Cost Share Program (NCACSP) 
Natural Resource Inventory (FSA, NCACSP, 0.200) Environmental Quality Incentives Program (EQIP) 
River Basin Study Reports    Forest Land Enhancement Program (FLEP) 
Natural Heritage Inventory of Onslow County  Wildlife Habitat Incentives Program (WHIP) 
Washington  County GIS     NRCS Toolkit 
Washington SWCD Long Range Plane   Maps (USGS Topographical, National Wetland  
Soil Survey of Washington County    Inventory and Flood Insurance Rate 
Maps) 
Grassland Reserve Program (GRP)   Historical Aerial Photos 
 
PROGRAMS 
Federally Initiated Programs    Forest Land Enhancement Program (FLEP) 
Conservation Technical Assistance (CTA)  Wetland Reserve Program (WRP) 
National Cooperative Soil Survey (NCSS)  Wildlife Habitat Incentives Program (WHIP) 
Small Watershed Program (PL-566)   Conservation Reserve Program (CRP/CREP) 
River basin Surveys & Investigations (RB-09)  Emergency Conservation Program (ECP) 
Resource Conservation & Development (RC&D) NC Partners for Wildlife 
Emergency Watershed Program (EWP)   Farmland Protection 
Environmental Quality Incentives Program (EQIP) 319 Funds  
Agricultural Conservation Easement Program   Grassland Reserve Program (GRP) 



`              Agreement Number: 

Conservation Stewardship Program (CSP)  Other Farm Bill authorized conservation programs 
 
North Carolina Initiated State Programs  Comm. Conservation Assistance Program (CCAP) 
NC Agriculture Cost Share Program (NCACSP) - Clean Water Management Trust Fund (CWMTF) 
DSWC       Wildlife Biology Technical Assistance – NCWRC 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control – Urban Areas Wildlife Restoration Committee 
Site Plan Reviews – Non-Ag. Developments  State non-discharge rules (0.100, 0.2H200 & 0.2T) 
Confined Animal Permits – NCDENR   Forest Development Plan – (FDP) – NCFS 
Farmland Protection     North Carolina Environmental Education Plan 
NC – Wetland Restoration Program (NC-WRP)  North Carolina Big Sweep 
NC Agriculture Water Resource Assistance Program 2016 Disaster Recovery Program 
(AgWRAP) – DSWC  
 
Locally Initiated Programs    Open Spaces Institute Advisory Board 
Farmland Preservation     Erosion & Sedimentation Control – Urban Areas 
Site Plan Reviews – Non-Ag. Developments  Environmental Education 
Awards and Recognition Program 
 
MARKETING MEDIA 
- Newsletters (SWCD, FSA, CES, County Web.) -     Regional Chamber of Commerce 
- Private & Public Schools    -     Community College 
- Church Newsletters     -     4-H Groups 
- Local Broadcasting (TV, Radio, Cable)  -     Social Media (Facebook) 



 1 Revised 06-30-21 
 

 
 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM RESOLUTION 
 

FY 2023 RESOLUTION 
 

Section 5311 (including ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination thereof. 
 
 
Applicant seeking permission to apply for Washington County dba Riverlight Transit funding, enter into 
agreement with the North Carolina Department of Transportation, provide the necessary assurances and the 
required local match. 
 
A motion was made by (Board Member’s Name)       and seconded by (Board Member’s Name or N/A, if not 
required)       for the adoption of the following resolution, and upon being put to a vote was duly adopted. 
 

WHEREAS, Article 2B of Chapter 136 of the North Carolina General Statutes and the Governor of 
North Carolina have designated the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) as the 
agency responsible for administering federal and state public transportation funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation will apply for a grant from the US 
Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration and receives funds from the North 
Carolina General Assembly to provide assistance for rural public transportation projects; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the purpose of these transportation funds is to provide grant monies to local agencies for 

the provision of rural, small urban, and urban public transportation services consistent with the policy 
requirements of each funding source for planning, community and agency involvement, service design, 
service alternatives, training and conference participation, reporting and other requirements (drug and 
alcohol testing policy and program, disadvantaged business enterprise program, and fully allocated 
costs analysis); and 

 
 WHEREAS, the funds applied for may be Administrative, Operating, Planning, or Capital funds and 

will have different percentages of federal, state, and local funds. 
 
 WHEREAS, non-Community Transportation applicants may apply for funding for “purchase-of-

service” projects under the Capital Purchase of Service budget, Section 5310 program. 
 

WHEREAS, Washington County dba Riverlight Transit hereby assures and certifies that it will provide 
the required local matching funds; that its staff has the technical capacity to implement and manage the 
project(s), prepare required reports, obtain required training, attend meetings and conferences; and 
agrees to comply with the federal and state statutes, regulations, executive orders, Section 5333 (b) 
Warranty, and all administrative requirements related to the applications made to and grants received 
from the Federal Transit Administration, as well as the provisions of Section 1001 of Title 18, U. S. C. 
 



 2 Revised 06-30-21 
 

WHEREAS, the applicant has or will provide all annual certifications and assurances to the  
State of North Carolina required for the project;  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the County Manager of Washington County is hereby authorized 
to submit grant application (s) for federal and state funding in response to NCDOT’s calls for projects, 
make the necessary assurances and certifications and be empowered to enter into an agreement with the 
NCDOT to provide rural, small urban, and urban public transportation services. 

I (Certifying Official’s Name)*  Julie Bennett (Certifying Official’s Title)  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners for 
Washington County do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of an excerpt from the minutes of 
a meeting of the (Name of Applicant’s Governing Board) Washington County Board of Commisisioners duly held 
on the 7th day of September, 2021. 
       
 
 
Signature of Certifying Official 
 
*Note that the authorized official, certifying official, and notary public should be three separate individuals. 
 
 
Seal Subscribed and sworn to me 
(date)  

 

 
 
Notary Public * 
 
 
Printed Name and Address        
 
My commission expires 
(date)  

 

 
 
 

Affix Notary Seal Here 



 

PROCLAMATION 2021-017 
 

NATIONAL BREAST CANCER AWARENESS MONTH 
 

WHEREAS, Breast cancer affects so many women and their families, not only in 
Washington County, NC but also throughout the country. One in eight women (13%) are 
diagnosed with breast cancer over the course of their lifetime, making this disease the most 
frequently diagnosed cancer among women in the U.S., other than skin cancer; and 

WHEREAS, For women in the U.S., breast cancer death rates are higher than those for 
any other cancer, besides lung cancer; and 

WHEREAS, In 2021, an estimated 281,550 new cases of invasive breast cancer are 
expected to be diagnosed in women in the U.S., along with 49,290 new cases of non-invasive 
(in situ) breast cancer and about 43,600 women are expected to die due to the disease; and 

WHEREAS, About 2,650 new cases of invasive breast cancer are expected to be 
diagnosed in men in 2021; and 

WHEREAS, The 3.8 million breast cancer survivors living in the U.S. today are a 
testament to courage, as well as to the importance of promoting awareness about breast cancer, 
providing information, funding research, following recommended screening guidelines and offering 
treatment to those who are affected; and 

WHEREAS, There continues to be a need to increase awareness of breast cancer 
screening and to promote research for the prevention and cure of breast cancer; and  

WHEREAS, October is designated as National Breast Cancer Awareness Month and the 
pink ribbon is the internationally recognized symbol of breast cancer awareness.  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Washington County Board of Commissioners hereby proclaims 
the month of October, 2021 as “NATIONAL BREAST CANCER AWARENESS MONTH” in 
Washington County. 

ADOPTED this 4th day of October, 2021.     

   __________________________________ 
   Tracey A. Johnson, Vice-Chair 
Washington County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
 Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
     Clerk to the Board  



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

RESOLUTION 2021-018 
 

DECLARING OCTOBER AS DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH 
  

WHEREAS, domestic violence is the willful intimidation, physical assault, battery, sexual assault, and/or 
other abusive behavior as part of a systematic pattern of power and control perpetrated by one intimate partner 
against another; and 
  

WHEREAS, domestic violence is a serious crime that affects people of all races, ages, gender, and income 
levels; and 
  

WHEREAS, domestic violence is widespread and affects over ten million Americans each year; and 
  

WHEREAS, 1 in 4 women and 1 in 10 men have experienced some form of physical violence by an 
intimate partner; and 
  

WHEREAS, children that grow up in violent homes are believed to be abused and neglected at a rate 
higher than the national average; and 
  

WHEREAS, domestic violence costs the nation billions of dollars annually in medical expenses, police and 
court costs, shelters, foster care, sick leave, absenteeism, and non-productivity; and 
  

WHEREAS, only a coordinated community effort will put a stop to this heinous crime; and 
  

WHEREAS, Domestic Violence Awareness Month provides an opportunity for citizens to learn more about 
preventing domestic violence and to show support for the numerous organizations and individuals who provide 
critical advocacy, services, and assistance to victims; and 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, North Carolina, proclaims 
the month of October as Domestic Violence Awareness Month and urges the citizens of Washington County to 
work together to eliminate domestic violence from our community. 
  

ADOPTED this the 4th day of October, 2021. 
              
      __________________________________________ 

          Tracey A. Johnson, Vice-Chair 
          Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 

COMMISSIONERS: 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR., CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   2 
 
       DATE:     October 4, 2021 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for 
comments from the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public 
comment period.  
 
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the 
beginning of each regular monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum 
of thirty (30) minutes. 
 
Additionally this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the 
meeting at which they wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins 
prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall clearly write their name, address, and the topic 
upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
 
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, 
which I wish to remind the public is: 
 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and 

begin their remarks by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer 

any impromptu questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks 
to the Board as a body, and not to any individual board or staff members.  
Discussions between speakers and members of the audience shall not be allowed. 



4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use 
profanity, racial slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal 
attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their 
remarks depending on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may 
limit the number of speakers allowed to make substantially similar comments 
with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are 
encouraged to leave a copy of such remarks and documents with the County 
Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of 
public hearings set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session 
matters, including without limitation matters within the attorney-client privilege, 
anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property acquisition, and matters 
which are made confidential by law. 

HOW TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PUBLIC FORUM DURING 
COVID-19 AT THE OCTOBER 4, 2021 WASHINGTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
 
Due to regrettably necessary ongoing protective measures related to COVID-

19, it will likely be necessary limit and restrict physical access to this meeting.  
Washington County is committed to maintaining the highest standards of transparency 
and community engagement during these challenging times, and appreciates your 
patience and understanding with such restrictions. The October 4, 2021 Board of 
Commissioners meeting will take place at 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC in the 
Commissioners’ Room and be live streamed on the County’s Facebook Page. Please 
review the following information carefully regarding alternative ways to access or 
participate in this, or any other public hearing, or any public comment portion of a 
regular meeting. 

 
1. Access and View the meeting online.  The meeting will be live streamed on the 

County’s publicly accessible Facebook page at:  www.facebook.com/Washconc/  
 
2. Only if you wish to speak during any public comment period, you may attend the 

meeting in person for such purpose.  You must arrive at 116 Adams Street before 
6:00 PM to sign up.  You must wear a cloth protective mask, maintain at least three 
feet of distance between yourself and all other persons, and follow any other 
applicable social distancing guidance.  You may be asked to wait outside (please 
come prepared for inclement weather), and each person may be called into the 
meeting room one at a time to address the Board before being required to leave the 
meeting room in order to limit overall occupancy and comply with applicable 
regulations and guidance.  You may still follow the remainder of the meeting which 
will be live streaming on the Facebook page referred to above, or may access a 

http://www.facebook.com/Washconc/


recording of the full meeting which will remain accessible on our Facebook page for 
at least 48 hours after the meeting is concluded. 

 
Please contact Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board at 252-793-5823, or by email at 
jbennett@washconc.org before 2:00 PM on Monday, October 4, 2021 with any 
questions or concerns related to this notice or access to or participation in the 
October 4, 2021 meeting. 

 

mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     October 4, 2021 
 
ITEM:       Department Information Update:  Plymouth Municipal Airport, Mr. 

Knapp Brabble, Airport Director 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
This is a new item added to the monthly agenda.  Each month a different Department 
Head will be asked to come and speak to the Commissioners about the work going on in 
their area.  For the October 4, 2021 meeting, Mr. Knapp Brabble, Director of the 
Plymouth Municipal Airport will give a presentation on the Airport. 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  4 
 
       DATE:     October 4, 2021 
 
ITEM:       Resolution 2021-019 Adopting Redistricting Map, Mr. Harry White, 

GIS/Mapping Director and Mr. Richard Livingston, Lead For the North 
Carolina Fellow (LFNC) 

  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. White and Mr. Livingston have worked together on the Redistricting Map. (See 
attached). They will be asking for the Board’s approval of this map. 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

RESOLUTION 2021-019 

ADOPTION OF REDISTRICTING MAP 
 

WHEREAS, the release of the decennial census data requires counties with true electoral 
Districts to examine their electoral Districts to determine if population balances exist; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of Commissioners uses four true electoral 

Districts to elect Board Members not At Large; and  
 

WHEREAS, the current electoral Districts for Washington County’s Board of 
Commissioners have significant population imbalances; and  
  

WHEREAS, correcting population imbalances between electoral Districts is a critical part 
of ensuring the democratic principle of “one person, one vote”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners is authorized and required by North Carolina 
General Statutes §153A-22 to revise its District boundaries to correct population imbalances 
shown by a federal census; and 
 

WHEREAS, County staff has put significant resources into developing new electoral 
Districts that rectify population imbalances between Districts on an impartial, nonpartisan, and 
practical basis; and  
 

WHEREAS, on September 7th, 2021 the Board of Commissioners, meeting in a regular 
meeting, reviewed and considered plans for redrawing the District boundaries; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 7th, 2021 the Board of Commissioners, meeting in a regular 

meeting, approved the presentation of multiple redistricting plans for public comment via the 
internet; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached map corresponds with electoral Districts that meet statutory 
requirements concerning population parity and District continuity. 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS: 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR., CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Washington County as follows:  
 

1. That the County adopts these new Districts represented in the attached map for 
purposes of electing County Commissioners not At Large.  

2. The boundaries of the four Districts for the election of the Washington County Board 
of Commissioners are altered to follow the lines depicted on the attached map.  

3. The new District boundaries shall be used for the next election of Board Members 
and for each subsequent election until the boundaries are altered according to law. 

4. A copy of this resolution and the maps showing the District boundaries shall be 
retained in the office of the Clerk to the Board.  

5. That the Clerk to the Board is designated to file these new Districts with all requisite 
parties as noted in N.C.G.S § 153A-22(f) to include the Secretary of State, Register 
of Deeds, and the Washington County Board of Elections.  

  
ADOPTED this the 4th day of October, 2021. 
 
              
      __________________________________________ 

          Tracey A. Johnson, Vice-Chair 
          Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 



B 
CA

NA
L

SH
O

R
E

NEWLAND

NC
 H

W
Y 

32

MACKEYS
LO

NG
 R

ID
G

E

NC HW
Y 99

US HWY 64 WESTBOUND
NC HWY 94

LAKE

HOLLIS

RA
IL

RO
AD

 B
ED

US HWY 64 E
ASTBOUND

D 
CA

NA
L

MAIN

PIKE

PEA RIDGE

NC
 32

C
R

O
S

S

W
ES

TO
N

FO
LL

Y

N
C

 99

BACK

NC HW
Y 45

N
O

R
TH

LI
N

E

AM
B

R
O

S
E

TH
IR

TY
 F

T 
CA

NA
L

C 
CA

NA
L

M
T 

TA
BO

R

JONES WHITE

CHERRY

AL
LI

G
O

OD

US HWY 64 EAST

WOODLAWN

BAC
KW

O
O

D
S

MAIL ROUTE

NC
 H

W
Y 

37

R
EN

O

PHELPS CANAL

LAKE SHORE

M
O

UN
TA

IN
 C

AN
AL

A 
CA

NA
L

OLD CHERRY

DAVENPORT FORKS

ST DAVID

US
 H

W
Y 

64
 W

ES
T

M
AG

NO
LI

A 
CR

O
SS

 E
XT

W
ARD

WEST MILL POND

DEEP CREEK

W
IL

SO
N

EAST M
ILL PO

ND

HOLLY NECK

MORRATTOCK

BE
AS

EL
Y

NC HW
Y 149

M
EADOW

BARBER

THIRD

PA
RK

SLOUGH

PORK CHOP

SPRUILL BRIDGE

LOOP

BE
N

SO
N

GARRETT ISLAND

TOM PEPPER

WATER

WEST

NORTH SLOPE

MARRINER

G
AG

E

SC
U

PPER
N

O
N

G

R
ES

EA
R

C
H

 S
TA

TI
O

N

M
C

N
AI

R

RI
VE

R

FI
RS

T

W
ASHING

TO
N

AL
LE

N

GUS TOWN

BEASLEY

WHITE OAK

M
T 

PL
EA

SA
N

T

SIXTH

IDA

RANKIN

SPRUILL

R
O

O
SEVELT

HORTONTOWN

FOURTH

M
O

NRO
E

LAN
D

FILL

C 
CA

NA
L 

(H
YD

E 
CO

)

C
O

O
PE

R

GOLF

STYONS

BOUSHBUNCOMBE

DOWNING

NEWBY

ALBEM
AR

LE BEAC
H

SAND HILL

GOURD NECK

SPRUILL TOWN

R
O

X
IE

 R
EE

SE

W
IL

SO
N

 S
T

ROBIN

OLD ROPER

MALLARD

WHITE

LEARYS BEACH

AL
D

EN

NIXON

WOODS

ARNOLD HILL

PINE

LAM
B

SAINTS DELIGHT LI
LY

LL
AM

A

PL
YM

O
U

TH
 A

IR
PO

RT

BREEZY BANKS

R
AB

BI
T 

C
R

O
SS

PARRISH

PHELPS

EXIT 548 E

HAM
PTO

N

REEDS

CONABY

NORMAN

DAVIS

BI
G

G
S

JORDAN THICK

EXIT 558 W

AR
N

O
LD

 L
O

O
P

BE
EC

H
 B

AY

WALKER

EXIT 544 W

OAK

KING

LOBLOLLY

EXIT 557 E

FAIR
LAN

E

CRADDOCK

FE
R

R
IS

GAVIN

C
O

O
L 

SP
R

IN
G

S

PLUME

GEE

BEAR POND

LOIS
GRIFFIN

AN
G

E

C CANAL (BEAU CO)

M
AL

LA
R

D
 C

O
VE

IVY

FURLOUGH

THO
M

AS

ASKEW

PEAN
U

T

FAYE

W
ELC

O
M

E

WOODLEY STATION

PR
IC

E

HUGHES

HA
RR

IS

HIDDEN LAKE

R
U

BY

W
ILKINS

NC HWY 94

CRADDOCK

WHITE

NC HW
Y 32

RA
IL

RO
AD

 B
ED

MAIN

NC H
W

Y 45

ANGE

µ
WASHINGTON COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

WASHINGTON COUNTY, NC - GIS

DRAWN BY; HARRY WHITE
hwhite@washconc.org

SEPT 30, 2021

Legend
Roads

DISTRICT
1 - 2712.9

2 - 2691.7

3 - 2752.9

4 - 2820.2

0 1 20.5 Miles

2021 COMMISSIONER DISTRICTS  MAP

DISTRICT 2DISTRICT 3

DISTRICT 4

DISTRICT 1



 

WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

AGENDA STATEMENT 

 

 

 
       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:  October 4, 2021 
 
ITEM:       Budget Transfers and Amendments and Finance Officer’s Report, Ms. 

Missy Dixon, Finance Officer 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer will discuss the attached budget amendments/transfers 

to the Board for approval/disapproval and information. 

 

Ms. Dixon will also discuss the attached Monthly Financial Summary with the Board. 

 

 

 





















































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   6 
 
       DATE:     October 4, 2021 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 

 Department Head Reports from September  2021 
 

 Statistics Report from September 2021 
 
 Register of Deeds Rollup Summary 

 
 ABC Funds Report for FY2021-Washington County 

 
 

 
 

See attached. 
 

 
 



 
 

 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
October 4, 2021 

Board of Commissioners’ In Person & Facebook Livestreamed Meeting 
 

 
Geographic Information Systems 
Harry White 
 
The GIS/Mapping Department is doing fine. The following tasks were completed by the 
GIS/Mapping Department  

 Verified of property as recorded on deeds 
 Transfer of real property 
 Land-parcel splits and recombination of property 
 Assist the general public with maps and related needs 
 Managed correspondence via phone, email  
 Assist the Finance Department when needed 
 Update property maps for the Tax Department & 911 
 Work on 2020 Census Redistricting map 

 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
EMS STAFFING:  

With the increase of COVID Positive Cases in our counties, the EMS Division has experienced 
employee shortages this past month due to employee illness.  Currently, there are no open Full 
Time positions available.  The Transport Division has (2) EMT Basic Full Time positions 
available.  

EMPLOYEE SAFETY: 

PPE remains at a comfortable level and is sufficient to absorb a peak in call volume for 
approximately 14 days.  EMS and Transport Providers continue to manage the daily disinfecting 
practices inside the bases and ambulances with intermittent deep decon of EMS units.  

OTHER SYSTEM BUSINESS:  

Football Games are in full swing and there have been several other community events for which 
EMS was requested.   EMS makes all attempts to attend football games as call volume allows 
although changes made by the NCHSAA no longer require an ambulance be present for games.  
There has been at least one game that we were late to and one that we were not able to cover at 
the last minute due to a spike in call volume over the 5 requests this past month.  

Sunday, September 26, was “Touch a Truck” day so we were able to have an ambulance 
available for the public to see. (See photo below.) 



 
 

 

As always, thank you for your continued support of the Washington-Tyrrell County EMS 
System.  

 
 
 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
Recreation football league is doing well. The 12u is in 1st place and the 10u, 8u in 2nd place.  A 
schedule of our games is below.  We are hoping by the grace of God COVID-19 stays 
away.  Our tournament is at the end of October and the State is in November.   
 



 
 

  



 
 

 

Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
I have been preparing for a mock election for the month of September. Printelect 
came by and gave me a training class for the DS200 and Electionware for election night.  
 
 
Library 
Vacant 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
 
Beth Stanley Jackson 
4-H Youth Development  
 
The 4-H Program will partner with the Washington County Public Schools to offer “Clubs in the 
Classroom” later this fall!  Each month, the 1st, 3rd, 5th, and Self-Contained classrooms will meet 
for interactive activities on healthy living and agriculture.  

The 4-H to the Front Door Program will open online registration on Monday, October 4. Open to 
youth ages 5-12 who live in Washington County or are current Washington County 4-H'ers, the 
program will provide FREE at-home experiences for youth focusing on character education, 
healthy living, and STEAM. Each kit will provide at least four hands-on learning activities. 
These kits are made possible through grant funding provided by the Juvenile Crime Prevention 
Council (JCPC).  The kits will be released in November, mid-January, and mid-March.  
Washington County 4-H will deliver kits on designated days to the Plymouth, Roper, and 
Creswell areas! 

 Link to register: https://4htothefrontdoor.eventbrite.com  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://4htothefrontdoor.eventbrite.com/


 
 

 

 

Rebecca Liverman 
County Extension Director 
 
We have 34 participants in the L.I.F.T program. 
Through a partnership with the Senior Center, we offer 
two days a week of exercise and nutrition instruction. 
These sessions are uploaded to YouTube, so 
participants can watch them later if they don’t catch us 
live! 
 
This is a sixteen-series class; it’s not too later to register. 
https://www.eventbrite.com/manage/events/168298484297/details 

 

 

 

Medicare Open Enrollment starts October 15-
December 7th. We will be doing phone 
counseling again this year. We have four 
volunteers and a data entry clerk that assist with 
this program. 

 

Jalynne Waters – Ag Agent 
September 2021 Commissioner’s Report 
 

● Growers are still calling to have their corn and soybean harvest entered into the NC corn 
and soybean yield contests  

 

● Peanut harvest season is here – Washington and Martin County Extension have been 
working together again to hold peanut pod blasting clinics. During these events, peanuts 
are pressure washed to get rid of the outer layer of the shell, exposing the inner layer. The 
darker the inner layer is, the more mature the peanut. Growers will bring us samples of 



 
 

 

peanuts, we pressure wash them, and then lay them out to determine how many days they 
have left until the peanuts have reached optimum maturity and are ready to dig. 

 

● Washington County Extension held a meeting that will provide pesticide applicators with 
their last opportunity to get pesticide credits before their license expires. 
 

● Corn test plots at the Blackland Tour site have been harvested for data. I was also able to 
help the Martin County agent help harvest his corn variety trial – in return, he helped me 
understand new ways to set up a test plot and how to operate a weigh wagon 

 

 

 

Washington County Soil and Water 
Martha Prinsloo 
 
During the month of September, the Soil and Water Tech. has returned on September 20th from 
Maternity leave.  I have been catching up on state contracts. I have made field visits with 
landowners about state and drainage issues.   

 
 
Veteran’s Service Officers Report 
Burl Walker 
 

1. Submitted two (2) Property Tax Exclusion request for a veteran. 
2. Submitted one (1) Burial Benefit and one (1) Dependence and Indemnity Compensation 

for a dependent. 
3. Submitted one (1) request for CHAMPVA benefit for one (1) widow. 



 
 

 

4. Informed one (1) veteran the information needed to file a claim. 
5. Submitted one (1) claim for Individual Unemployability for a veteran. 
6. Faxed one (1) correction form to DVA for a veteran. 

 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 

Planning / Inspections 
September 1 through 28, 2021 

 
Inspections: buildings/trades   52 
Daycare Inspections      3 
Fire Inspections      1 
 
Permits Issued     20 
Plan Reviews – Commercial     1 (McDonald’s refurbish) 
                           Residential     1 
Maps                   3 
 
Out of office for Bertie Contract: Tuesdays – 7, 14, 21, 28 
2nd SOG class – Writing a Land Use Plan in Concert with 160-D (part 2) 
16th ZOOM meeting  - Land Use Plan review 
17th CRS Seminar – Flood map preview – with municipalities and mapping invited 
24th  Medical appt – 2 hours 
28th NCEM Community Disaster Training – (Connie) 
30th Scheduled CERT Forum (Connie) 
 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell 
 
Report for August & September: 
 

1. Generator Grant- In process of starting project. Current quotes locked in with contractor, 
waiting for updated quotes to be produced. Should have them soon for presentation at 
County Commissioner’s Meeting Oct. 4th.  

2. All EMPG funding deliverables completed for FY 21! EMPG 22 already started on 



 
 

 

3. Withdrawn from Pines Generator Grant app., we will be reapplying under another 
disaster once the withdrawal is approved and another disaster has been identified that we 
would qualify for. 

4. Sheltering- MOA/Contract with Red Cross and Washington County Schools for move of 
shelter to Washington Co. Middle School. Agreement was sent to School board from 
ARC on September 21. 

5. EM responded and Red Cross assisted with house fire on 116 Brinkley Place, 201 
Latham Ave. In addition there were 3 more structure fires on 4th Street on September 6th. 
EM assisted Plymouth Fire with OSFM request and contact for Investigation which 
resumed Tuesday morning the 7th. 

6. EM-1 responded to 3 Tractor trailer/truck incidents. 1 overturned possible fuel spill on 
Ken Trowbridge rd., 1 accident involving a HazMat placarded truck on 64 and 1 head on 
collision in Creswell that resulted in an injury and a large hydraulic oil spill spread over a 
large section of road in a curve that initiated a call to NCDOT for assistance.  

7. Responded to 1 Natural Gas Leak Sept. 25th reported and contained within a few minutes. 
No evacuations needed. 

8. EM -1 participated in a Live Burn Exercise in the Roper Fire District and incorporated an 
ICS Accountability Exercise at the Burn 

9. AAR for Alligator River Helo crash completed.8/17/21 
10. LEPC Meeting to be hosted in Washington Co. on September 14th @ 10:00 

a.m.(hopefully BCCC/WC campus building) This meeting was held but held virtually 
and hosted by Bertie EM. 

11. Still working on finding a contractor that can do a turnkey job and give a quote on 
upgrading building and tower in Roper. 

12. Light Tower’s serviced for hurricane season. Red Cross Shelter trailer has new tires and 
is ready to go.   

13. Orion- Need contract to be finalized (signed) and sent back to Kurt Steier. Company 
trained us/those in the County who need initial access on September 1st. 

14. DAWG (Disaster Assistance Working Group) Meeting on 9/9/2021. Meeting was in 
Currituck at new Public Safety Building. Got to meet up with Beaufort, Bertie, Martin, 
Chowan, Perquimans, Pasquotank/Camden, Currituck, Dare and State EM Area 2 
Coordinator Billy Winn. Discussed DPR projects and funding.  

15. Statewide EM Fuel Shortage Exercise on 9/22/21. First event for FY22 for EMPG. 
16. EM Presentation at Kingdom Kids. 
17. Training- Virtual Student WebEx Training, Advanced WebEOC, Solar Farm Safety Class 

 

Register of Deeds 
Tim Esolen 
 
Deputy Register of Deeds, Mrs. Gail Phelps continues her recovery from health issues.  Please 
continue to keep her in your prayers. 
 



 
 

 

We have the new computers and printer up and running in the office. Many thanks to 
Information Technology Director Mrs. Darlene Fikes, Soundside, and Courthouse Computers for 
taking care of that.  Also, we will begin “e-recording” soon to allow an easier recording process. 
 
Regarding Death Certificates in the county we note the following: 
Certificates with COVD-19 either as the primary cause or attributing factor = 12 
Suicides = 5 
Homicides = 1 
Total Recorded Jan 1, 2021 thru Sept. 20, 2021 = 118 
Last year was (2020) was 151 
Average before 2020 is 100 +\- 
 
 
Public Utilities 
Doremus Luton 
 
No report submitted.  
 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 
   Detention:  

 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 

1. Work with Mary Moscato and Urban Leap on copier RFP. Present info to Curtis. Make 
necessary changes and adjust timeline in order to post. RFP posted on website Sept 28. 

2. Finalize 911 Motorola Radio Proposal. Curtis approved/signed. Sent PO to Motorola on 
Sept 3. 

3. Contact MCNC to get an official quote for the fiber build to Farmville for the 911 Motorola 
Radio. Build can take up to 150 days to complete. Estimate Fiber Line and Radio 
completion sometime around February-March 2022. 

4. Review all Solarwinds AV licenses before renewal. Update documentation. 



 
 

 

5. Troubleshoot issue with CAD faxing reports to EMS and Fire Departments.  
6. Work with Verizon Wireless and Southern Software to activate EMAG in 911. 

Type set of instructions for 911 Director to use to complete the State 911 Revenue- 
Expenditure Report. Assist in completing and submitting. 

7. Re-install Windows OS on Tax office pc. 
8. Work with State 911 Board, AT&T and Southern Software to correct issue with ANI/ALI  

not populating address location of landlines and cell phones. 
9. Troubleshoot issue with Burl Walker and OWA. 
10. Work on surplus electronic equipment – collect and document. 
11. Work with Edmunds – error with installing code for HR. 
12. Work with Harry White to get token to log in 911 Net in order to keep updated. 
13. Work with Century Link on credit due to County. Document and give to Finance. 
14. Work with Dell on invoice issue. 
15. Zoom meeting with Dale Graver (VC3) on Sept 10. 
16. Attend Zoom meeting concerning BAND-NC on Sept 9. 
17. Troubleshoot email issue with SSG. 
18. Update users on Exchange. Remove accounts over 10 years old. 
19. Update AD users. Dump My Documents to external hard drive to users over 10 years old. 
20. Attend Departmental meeting. 
21. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
22. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
23. Reconcile Budget Statement. 

  
 
Senior Center 
Vanessa Joyner 
 

1. Overall:  August we seem to be getting back into the swing of things.  The seniors are 
coming back and feel comfortable.  We are offering our regular programs for them.  
Renee Collier has put Dance Fitness on hold until October.    

2. Bean Bag Toss –August 2, 2021 – This is similar to corn-hole toss.  It is tricky because 
the bags can bounce out of the slot if you throw it too hard.  It is challenging for them and 
fun.   

3. DYI with Ariel – August 3, 2021 –  Ariel made puzzle pieces and had the seniors to 
write what the like about the senior center.  She put all the pieces together to make the 
complete puzzle.  The enjoyed doing that.     

4. Woo Ball – August 4 ,2021 – The seniors sit in a circle and bounce the ball to each other.  
It sounds boring but you would have to see it to know how much they enjoy doing this.  
They do not want to stop playing it.       

5. Linked Senior –Guess the Song – August 4, 2021 – This is a computerized game we 
play with the seniors.  We put the information on the TV screen and they can sit in the 
Lobby area to play.   The game is set up by Linked Senior.   They had fun playing this 
game. 



 
 

 

6. Caregiver’s Support Group – August 5, 2021 – This has not picked up since COVID-
19 we are not getting any response.   We tried virtually but that had limited success.     

7. Town of Plymouth Lighthouse History – August 6, 2021 – Ariel gave them the history 
of the Lighthouse in Plymouth.  She made a power point presentation and had interesting 
facts.  They seemed to enjoy the information.  

8. Bingo with Staff – August 10, 2021 – Bingo is always a big hit.   The seniors love to be 
able to win prizes.   Our prizes can be small but it doesn’t matter.  They like to win.      

9. Chair Volleyball – August 11, 2021 – We have an indoor volleyball set.  They play 
volleyball sitting down. This is a big hit with them as well.       

10. Coffee Break – August 12, 2021 – This is a chance for the seniors to sit down and talk to 
the Director and tell what’s on their minds.  They offer up suggestions on what they want 
to do or changes they would like to see at the center.     

11. National Heroes Presentation – August 24-26, 2021 –We asked different responders as 
EMS, Sheriff, Ms. Ann Keyes and Chief of Police to come and explain what they do for 
the county.   We wanted to honor them as our heroes.   They were given a handmade gift 
to show our appreciation of their services.      

12. Cooking with Vanessa – August 30, 2021- Vanessa demonstrated how to make a 
cheesesteak hoagie for the seniors.  It was simple and easy to make and they could do this 
at home.        

13. Nutrition Presentation – August 31, 2021– Martha Carter talked to the seniors about 
healthy snacks and shared information for the seniors.  She prepared a snack for them to 
try at home.   They liked it.  

 
14. Exercise Classes offered at the Center:   

Chair Exercise – Tuesday/Thursday 1:00 – 2:00 cost $5.00 monthly 
Dance Fitness – Monday, Wednesday & Friday – 5:30 cost $10.00 monthly 
Yoga – Monday 7:00 – 8:00 cost $5.00 monthly 
Advanced Line Dancing Thursday 5:30 – 6:30 cost $5.00 monthly 
The Line Dancing and Dance Fitness classes are open to all citizens regardless of age. 

 
 
Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
 

1. Replaced 2 runway lights. 
2. Have a couple taxiway lights out and have contacted AVCON about warranty on taxiway 

lights. 
3. Behind big time on grass cutting because of tractor breakdown. 
4. Cleaning fuel farm tanks with cleaning solution and pressure washer. May have to put 

coat of aluminum paint to keep from rusting. 
5. Advisory committee met in August and made a couple of changes to draft ALP.  

Advisory Committee to meet on September 29 to check on changes made to ALP draft 
before Delta Airport Consultants sends the final draft to FAA for approval. 

6. The ALP for Airport Open House was held in the Commissioners’ Room on August 9. 
The Advisory Committee will meet in September to approve changes before it is 
summited for approval. 

7. ALP – Delta Airport Consultants – update as follows:  
a. Washington County is updating the Plymouth Municipal Airport’s Airport Layout 



 
 

 

Plan (ALP). The ALP will provide the guidance necessary to maintain a safe and 
efficient airport over the next 20 years. 

b. Plan to convert lights in ladies room and pilots lounge to led without ballasts. 
Long term savings on electric consumption.   

c. FAA inspector said the headwall on exit Bravo and Charlie did not meet FAA 
height specs. Have contacted AVCON to repair. 

d. Working on having trees removed in RPZ approaches. 

 
 
Facility Services 
Louis Boone 
 

1. Installed element in the hot water heater in the Detention Center. 
2. Edged up the walk way at DSS. 
3. Clean AC drain in the Clerk of Court’s Office. 
4. Spray and disinfect the Clerk’s office (civil side) 
5. Clean drain out in the bathroom on the first floor. 
6. Installed flush valve in the urinal at the Washington County Center (formerly Windows 

on the World) 
7. Put new commode handle in the Judge’s Chambers. 
8. Put up chalk board in the Sheriff’s Office. 
9. Put black top patch on the concrete holes at the Health Department/Senior Center 

complex. 
10. Installed light bulbs in Detention Center. 
11. Installed light bulbs at the Health Department. 
12. Caulk around the Windows at the Senior Center. 
13. Installed light bulbs at the Library 
14. Clean, wash windows, vacuum, sweep, scrub, empty trash, dust, installed receptacles, 

light switches, flush valves, handles, bulbs, balances, disinfect entire building and offices. 
 
 
 
MTW Health District 
Wes Gray 
 
(Sends COVID-19 updates throughout the month) 
 
 
Surplus Report 
Renee’ Collier 
  
No surplus to report this month. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

DSS 
Clifton Hardison 

 



 
 

 

  

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 



 
 

 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by 
Gender)

Total 
Incacerations

60 49 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 109 109
Male 41 37 78
Female 7 1 8
Male 1 1 2
Female 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0
Female 0 7 7
Male 8 0 8
Female 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0

3 3 6 6
Male 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY21-22

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

86

2

0

0

0

7

8

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

NASH

SMCP

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Total Incarcerations  in FY 
(includes all Counties) 

83% 

2% 0% 0% 0% 
7% 

8% 0% 0% 

Incarcerations by County (Total FY21-22) 

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

NASH

US PRISON TRANSPORT



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals
WC Dispatched 129 165 294
WC Transported 90 122 212
WC Refusals 39 43 82

Transport Washington
Hospital to Hospitals 1 1 2
SNF to Doctors 68 71 139
Hospital Discharges 15 19 34
EMS Back Up 2 8 10

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals
TC Dispatched 62 65 127
TC Transported 43 48 91
TC Refusals 19 17 36

Mutual Aid Hyde
HC Dispatched 0 1 1
HC Transported 0 1 1
HC Refusals 0 0 0

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY21-22

Washington County

Tyrrell County



35% 

25% 

10% 

15% 

11% 
4% 0% 0% 0% 

EMS Dispatches for FY21-22 
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties) 

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $3,851.00 11,595.00$        2,952.50$   $18,398.50
Zoning 75.00$      75.00$         175.00$       $325.00

Reinspect 100.00$    -$             325.00$       $425.00
SWUF $125.00 -$             -$             $125.00

HO Recovery 
Fee $10.00 -$             10.00$         $20.00

Total $4,161.00 $11,670.00 $3,462.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,293.50

PLANNING AND ZONING
FY21-22

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$2,000.00

$4,000.00

$6,000.00

$8,000.00

$10,000.00

$12,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY21-22)  

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

95% 

2% 2% 1% 0% 

Fees Collected 
Percentages 

Building Zoning
Reinspect SWUF
HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 382 572 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 954
Unduplicated Attendees 34 68 102
New Particpants 2 5 7
Center-Sponsored Events 100 100
Special Events 15 212 227
Caregiver's Support Group 5 5
Exercise Room 24 50 74
Dance Fitness 10 10
Yoga 32 20 52
Chair Exercise 90 114 204
Beginner's Line Dance 40 36 76
Aerobics With Sandra Taylor 0
Crafts With Sandra Lee 30 27 57
Craft Room 40 40
Drop-in Activities 0
Art Class 0
Computer Wi-fi 0

SENIOR CENTER
FY21-22



YTD Total
MEAL DATA 1218 1394 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2612
Congregate Meals Served 294 401 695
Home-Delivered Meals Served 924 993 1917

YTD Total
CONTRIBUTION DATA 105.00$  87.00$    -$      -$         -$         -$      -$         -$         -$  -$  -$  -$  192.00$      
Congregate Meals -$            
Home-Delivered Meals -$            
Activity Fees 80.00$    70.00$     150.00$      
Donations 25.00$    17.00$     42.00$        

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Meals Served (FY21-22) 

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

12% 

27% 

0% 
9% 1% 6% 

24% 

9% 

0% 
7% 

5% 0% 0% 0% 

Senior Center Activities (FY21-22) Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events

Caregiver's Support Group

Exercise Room

Dance Fitness

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Beginner's Line Dance

Aerobics With Sandra Taylor

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Craft Room

Drop-in Activities

Art Class

Computer Wi-fi



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 818 854 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1672
Law Enforcement 655 640 1295

Animal Control 54 64 118
EMS 109 150 259

Reported Incidents 85 38 123
Total Arrests 23 5 28

Misdemeanor Arrests 3 1 4
Felony Arrests 20 4 24

Total Papers Served 24 37 61
Criminal Papers Served 6 6

Civil Papers Served 24 31 55
Total Papers Outstanding 32 9 41
Criminal Papers Outstanding 3 3

Civil Papers Outstanding 32 6 38
Gun Permits Issued 19 16 35
Conceals Pending 7 20 27

Concealed Permits Issued 36 16 52

SHERRIFF
FY21-22



77% 

7% 

16% 

Dispatched Calls (FY21-22) 

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

Gun Permits (FY21-22) 

Conceals Pending Concealed Permits Issued

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

YTD TOTALS

123 

4 

24 

6 

55 

3 

38 

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY21-22) 

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                      
Current Year Tax 2,195,228.45$   940,454.78$       
Current Yr Discount (43,716.55)$       (13,700.49)$       
Current Year Penalty 925.05$              1,865.96$           
Current Year Interest (6.12)$                 6.12$                  
Watershed Tax Current 
Yr 25,738.43$         10,972.38$         
Watershed Discount (515.49)$             (159.61)$             
Watershed Penalty 11.08$                22.16$                
Watershed Interest -$                    -$                    
Prior Year Tax 74,965.22$         19,860.44$         
Prior Year Penalty 75.34$                54.53$                
Prior Year Interest 8,417.44$           2,882.20$           
Prior Year Watershed 758.62$              168.17$              
Prior Year WS Penalty 0.89$                  0.76$                  
Prior Year WS Interest 558.84$              236.60$              
Bad Checks -$                    (122.76)$             
Prepayments 1,684.51$           2,986.19$           

TOTAL 2,264,125.71$   965,527.43$      -$                -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$  -$  -$                                      

Initiated 10
Amount 5,994.72$           
Satisfied/Cancelled
Amount

*

83,890.99$         83,890.99$                           

 -$                                      
Billed Current Yr 1,175,700.00$   1,175,700.00$                     
Collected Current Yr 372,776.94$       137,763.88$       510,540.82$                         
Bad Checks -$                    (300.00)$             (300.00)$                               

TOTAL 1,548,476.94$   137,463.88$       1,685,940.82$                     

Tax and Tag 
Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX
FY21-22

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments



Billed Current Yr -$                    -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$  -$                                      
Collected Current Yr -$                    -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$  -$                                      
Prior Yrs Collected -$                    -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                    -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$  -$                                      

Collected Current Yr 8,171.27$           8,171.27$                             

DMV -$                                      

Creswell Levy 6,909.47$           6,909.47$                             

TOTAL -$                    6,909.47$           -$                -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$  -$  6,909.47$                             

3,812,602.65$   1,201,963.04$   -$                -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$  -$  5,014,565.69$                     

Drainage Fees -    

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax Fees 

Current Year Tax Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in 
million gallons)

76.56 7432 7,509

Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in 
million gallons)

9.222 8302 8,311

Base Charges 64,536$      64,475$    129,011$        
Consumption Charges 47,983$      44,915$    92,898$           
Reconnecton Charges 1,365$        2,030$      3,395$             

 Number of Abatements 11 12 23                     

  Dollar Amount of 
Abatements 

3,224.00$  2,431$      5,655.00$       

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

14.9 12.9 27.800

Number of Customers 2624 2627 5,251
New taps 4 1 5

Limbs, Brush & Leaves 76.97 69.61 146.58
Inert Debris 29.68 24.93 54.61
Scrap Metal 0.54 0.35 0.89
C&D 68.47 132.55 201.02
Tires 3.73 5.11 8.84
Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$     4,844.65$   9,689.30$               

0

WATER AND SOLID WASTE
FY21-22

LANDFILL(in tons)



36% 

13% 
0% 

49% 

2% 

Landfill Collections (in tons) (FY21-22) 

Limbs, Brush & Leaves

Inert Debris

Scrap Metal

C&D

Tires

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison 
  

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in million gallons)









ABC Funds Report for FY 20-21 

County: Washington 

Amount of ABC Funds Received $ 3,000  

ABC Funds Restrictions per County Allocation: None   

Per GS 18B-805(h) since Trillium Health Resources received Alcoholism (ABC) 

Funds from your county, we are required to provide an annual report to the 

board of county commissioners describing how the funds were spent. Please find 

below to a brief description of the expenditures that were paid from July 1, 2020 

to June 30, 2021. 

Healing Transitions in Wake County: $ 2,700 was paid for 60 days for individuals 

from your county to the Healing Transitions in Wake County for substance abuse 

treatment and specifically for detoxification services and recovery treatment. 

*Substance Abuse Treatment Services: $ 97,078 was paid for 53 individuals from 

your county to providers for substance abuse treatment. 

Purchase of Naloxone Kits: Trillium purchased and distributed in Washington 

County 17 Naloxone kits for $1,275 to the Washington County Sherriff’s 

Department. 

Access Point Kiosk – The Kiosk provides anonymous evidence-based self-

conducted screenings for mental health and substance use to potentially link 

individuals to appropriate services. The annual cost is $1181.00 for these kiosk 

per year. 

These Substance abuse treatment expenditures were spent for the treatment of 

alcoholism or substance abuse. These funds were paid to providers who 

contracted with Trillium to provide substance abuse treatment to consumers with 

an address in your county. Services provided include but are not limited to the 

below:  

 Assessment/evaluation 

 Outpatient treatment and counseling, including face to face and 

telepsychiatry and both individual and group 

 Mobile Crisis 



 Substance Abuse Intensive Outpatient Therapy 

 Facility Based Crisis 

 Opioid Treatment 

 

*Denotes State and County funds paid for services for consumers residing in 

Washington County with substance abuse diagnosis. This does NOT include 

Medicaid funds paid for the same. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   6 
   
       DATE:     October 4, 2021 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Mr. Potter would like to have the following Closed Sessions pursuant to CGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  
(attorney-client privilege), NCGS§143-318.11(a)(4)  (economic development) and NCGS §143-
318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 
 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda October 4, 2021
	10-4-2021 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Item 1a) 9-7-2021 minutes
	Item 1b) Tax Refunds & Releases
	Item 1c) Washington SWCD MOU v2018 rev202109 final
	Item 1d) DSS FY 2023 Program Resolution for CTP
	Section 5311 (including ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination thereof.
	Affix Notary Seal Here

	Item 1e) Proclamation 2021 Breast Cancer Awareness Month
	Item 1f) Domestic Violence Awareness Month Oct 2021
	10-4-2021 Item 2 (public forum)
	HOW TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PUBLIC FORUM DURING COVID-19 AT THE OCTOBER 4, 2021 WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
	Due to regrettably necessary ongoing protective measures related to COVID-19, it will likely be necessary limit and restrict physical access to this meeting.  Washington County is committed to maintaining the highest standards of transparency and comm...

	10-4-2021 Item 3 Department Information Update- Airport
	10-4-2021 Item 4 Reso 2021-0919 Adopting Redistricting Map
	Item 4 Reso2021-019 Adopton of Redistricting Map 10-4-21 mtg
	Item 4 2021CommissionerDistrictsMap
	10-4-2021 Item 5 Budget Amendments & Transfers and Finance Officer's Report
	Item 5 Budget Transfers-Amendments 10-4-21 Board Packet
	Item 5 Finance Report 9-28-21 for 10-4-21 pkg
	10-4-2021 Item 6 Other Items
	Item 6 Reports for 10-4-2021 BoC Meeting
	Cover Sheet for Stat Report
	Item 6 FY21-22  Statistic Reports for 10-4-2021 BoCC mtg
	Detention
	EMS
	Planning & Zoning
	Senior Center
	Sheriff's Office
	 Tax
	Utilities

	Item 6 ROD
	Item 6  ABC Funds Report for FY 20 21 Washington
	10-4-2021 Item 7 Closed Session

